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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SAN JOSE DIVISION

JUNE SHELDON,

Plaintiff,
V.
Case No.
The Trustees of the San José/Evergreen
Community College District: BALBIR VERIFIED COMPLAINT

DHILLON, MARIA FUENTES, AUTUMN
GUTIERREZ, RICHARD HOBBS,
RONALD J. LIND, RANDY OKAMURA,
AND RICHARD K. TANAKA , all in their
individual and official capacitiesROSA G.
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PEREZ, in her individual and officia
capacities as Chancellor of the San
José/Evergreen Community College District;
ANITA L. MORRIS , in her individual and
official capacities as Vice Chancellor of Human
Resources for the San José/Evergreen
Community College District;MICHAEL L.

BURKE, in his individual and officia
capacities as President of San José City
College; LEANDRA MARTIN , in her
individual and official capacities as Dean of the
Division of Math and Science at San José City
College,

Defendants.

Plaintiff June Sheldon, by and through counsel, &dher Verified Complaint againg
Defendants Balbir Dhillon, Maria Fuentes, Autumnti@uwez, Richard Hobbs, Ronald J. Lind, Ran
Okamura, Richard K. Tanaka, Rosa G. Pérez, Anitddrris, Michael L. Burke, and Leandra Marti
hereby states as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. The cornerstone of public higher education is tteedom of professors to discu
competing theories and ideas in the classrooms ptecious freedom, comprised of the freedoni
speech and academic freedom, guards the faculpylilfc colleges and universities so that they
encourage students to ask innovative questionsheamdanswer those questions with a variety of id
and theories. Unfortunately, at San José/Everg@anmunity College District (the District) theg
freedoms do not exist. When Plaintiff June Sheldam adjunct faculty member at San José (
College (SJCC), answered a student’s science guedtiring class, another student complained al
being “offended” by the answer. Instead of protertMs. Sheldon’s right to answer the questi
Defendants fired her.

2. By terminating Ms. Sheldon for answering a studemiestion in class, Defendar
violated her First Amendment rights to freedom péexh, academic freedom, and protection fi

retaliation, as well as her Fourteenth Amendmegtttsi to due process and equal protection of |
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Defendants committed all of the actions allegedeimemwhile acting under color of state la
Defendants must be held accountable for their ustdational actions, restore Ms. Sheldon’s job, 4§
compensate Ms. Sheldon for violating her consuatail rights.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This action raises federal questions under thd &ivd Fourteenth Amendments to t
United States Constitution and the Civil Rights At1871, 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

4. This Court has original jurisdiction over theseded claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
1331 and 1343.

5. This Court has authority to award the requestedadsory relief under 28 U.S.C.
2201; the requested injunctive relief under 28 0.8 1343(3); the requested damages unde
U.S.C. § 1343(3); and attorneys’ fees under 42@].§.1988.

6. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 in the Nwortiistrict of California because
substantial part of the actions or omissions giviag to this case occurred within the Northerntiiiis
and at least one Defendant resides in the Nortbhestnict.

INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

7. Pursuant to Civil L.R. 3-2(c)—(e) & 3-5, this iscavil rights case, in a non-exceptg
category, suitable for assignment to the San Jos&gah because the civil action arose in Santaa
County.

PLAINTIFFE

8. Plaintiff June Sheldon is a resident of Soquel,if@alia. She is a former adjung
lecturer at SJCC in the District.

DEEENDANTS

9. Defendants Balbir Dhillon, Maria Fuentes, Autumnti@uez, Richard Hobbs, Ronald
Lind, Randy Okamura, and Richard K. Tanaka are, \wark at all times relevant to this Complai

members of the Board of Trustees of the Distridhese Defendants’ duties include the adoption ler
and regulations pursuant to Cal. Educ. Code 8§ 7@@fiyovern the California state community colied

including SJCC, and making final faculty employmdatisions. These Defendants acted under col
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state law when they violated Ms. Sheldon’s First Baurteenth Amendment rights. They are eachisu
their individual and official capacities.

10. Defendant Rosa G. Pérez is, and was at all timesamet to this Complaint, Chancellg
of the District. Chancellor Pérez’'s duties inclutie oversight of the District, including SJCC, {
execution of policies and regulations that govéen District, and decision-making concerning facy
employment. Defendant Pérez acted under colotadé $aw when she violated Ms. Sheldon’s F
and Fourteenth Amendment rights. She is suedrinffieial and individual capacities.

11. Defendant Anita L. Morris is, and was at all timetevant to this Complaint, Vic
Chancellor of Human Resources for the Districtcé/€Chancellor Morris’ duties include the oversig
of the District, including SJCC, the execution olipies and regulations that govern the Districigl g
decision-making concerning faculty employment. dhefant Morris acted under color of state |
when she violated Ms. Sheldon’s First and Fourtedmhendment rights. She is sued in her offig
and individual capacities.

12. Defendant Michael L. Burke is, and was at all tinretevant to this Complaint
President of SICC, a community college in the RistrPresident Burke’s duties include the oversi
of SJCC, the execution of policies and regulatitimst govern the college, and decision-mak
concerning faculty employment. Defendant Burkeedatnder color of state law when he violated |
Sheldon’s First and Fourteenth Amendment rights.idsued in his official and individual capacitie

13. Defendant Leandra Martin is, and was at all tinedevant to this Complaint, Dean
the Division of Math and Science at SJCC. Ms. Matduties include overseeing divisig
administration and employment, including the pelciand procedures that govern the collg
Defendant Marin acted under color of state law whles violated Ms. Sheldon’s First and Fourteg
Amendment rights. She is sued in her official amividual capacities.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. Ms. SHELDON'STEACHING CAREER AT THE DISTRICT
14.  June Sheldon received a bachelor’'s degree from)&sén State University in Moleculg

Biology in 1975 and a master’s degree in BiologynirSan José State University in 1978.
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15. Ms. Sheldon was an adjunct faculty member at SJ6@ flanuary 2004 to Februa
15, 2008.

16. From 2004 until the fall of 2007, Ms. Sheldon taughasses in biology an
microbiology in the Division of Math and ScienceSatCC.

17. SJCC is one of two California community collegeemaped by the District. The othg
college operated by the District is Evergreen \falmllege.

18. Ms. Sheldon taught at Evergreen Valley College fi#86 to 1993 in the Division g
Math, Science, and Engineering, specifically teagtuhemistry and biology.

19. During her employment by the District, Ms. Sheldonvork performance wa
satisfactory and she was never disciplined ungilitistance that is the subject of this lawsuit.

20. Ms. Sheldon has received research grants from #t@mal Science Foundation, h
authored university course materials, and hasveddeaching and research awards.

21. Course evaluations given by students for classegalmght in spring 2006, fall 2004
and spring 2007, indicate that Ms. Sheldon was @dgarofessor. The vast majority of stude
indicated that Ms. Sheldon knew the subject maifener courses; she encouraged students to
guestions; she encouraged individual thinking aifterénces of opinion; and she conducted
classes fairly with respect to age, gender, diggbrationality, race, religion, and sexual oresdn.

22.  In 2006, the District paid Ms. Sheldon approximatéhirty-two thousand dollars
($32,000.00) in compensation for her teaching sesbvi

23. In 2007, the District paid Ms. Sheldon approximatéhirty-eight thousand dollar
($38,000.00) in compensation for her teaching sesbvi

B. THE JUNE 21,2007HUMAN HEREDITY CLASS.
24. Ms. Sheldon taught SJCC’'s Human Heredity courseO(B061-101) during thg

summer 2007 semester.

25. The course included instruction in the role of desein medicine, agriculture, and

recombinant DNA technology, and it provided an ustinding of the biology of human genetics

non-science majors. A few of the course goalsunhetl students learning how to research huf
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genetic disorders using the internet, recognizegedisorders and models of inheritance, and ptgdi

the risk of inheritance of various genetic disosder
26. The Human Heredity course used the seventh eddfoa textbook entitledHuman

Genetics: Concepts and Applications by Ricki Lewis.

27. On June 21, 2007, Ms. Sheldon lectured on Mendéhiaeritance based on Chapter 4

of the course’s textbook. Prior to the lecture Bkeldon gave her students a quiz on Chapter I3eof t

textbook and discussed about five to ten (5—10utemof the preceding day’s content.

28.  After the quiz, but before the lecture, a studeskied Ms. Sheldon how heredity affeq
homosexual behavior in males and females. Theestigdquestion was based on a quiz question
was based on the textbook’s materials and Ms. Sh&grevious investigation of the topic.

29.  Even though the course covered the topic of homeaddehavior in males and femal

—

S
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D
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later in Chapter 6 of the textbook, Ms. Sheldonwaaied the student’s question by noting the

complexity of the issue, providing a genetic examplentioned in the textbook, and referring
students to the perspective of a German scienfistthe time, Ms. Sheldon could not remember

name of this scientist. Afterward she recalladas Dr. Gunter Dorner.

30. In answering the student’s question, Ms. Sheldoteddhat a German scientist (Dr.

Dorner) found a correlation between maternal stressternal androgens, and male homose
orientation at birth. As to female homosexual aangdMs. Sheldon stated that she was unaware 0
German scientist (Dr. Dorner) finding a correlatioetween female homosexual conduct, mate
stress, and maternal androgens in producing feh@igosexual orientation at birth. She referen
that the German scientist's (Dr. Dorner) views wergy one set of theories in the nature ver

nurture debate.

he
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-
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31. Dr. Gunter Dorner is a well-known German scientisgthe nature versus nurture debate

about the determination of sexual orientation. Ddrner’s research is found through tBaline
Mendelian Inheritance in Man website, http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/sites/entréz2omim that is
referred to by the textbook.

32. Ms. Sheldon also briefly described what the classild/learn in Chapter 6, which
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that homosexual behavior may be influenced by eties and the environment. She did not go
depth on this topic because the class was schetmleghch it during Chapter 6 of the textbook t
class periods later. A copy of Ms. Sheldon’s ChaaptPowerPoint lecture is attached as Exhibit
this Complaint.

33.  Ms. Sheldon got her information about Dr. Dérn@nira Stanford University databa
in the medical library and confirmed her findingsaugh the Human Heredity textbook.

34. Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the student’s in-class tesddressed a matter of pub
concern.

35. Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the student’s in-classtiuesvas protected speech.

C. THE ALLEGED STUDENT “C OMPLAINT "

36. On or about August 2, 2007, SJCC’s Dean of DivimbMath and Science, Defendant

Leandra Martin, sent Ms. Sheldon an email regardim@lleged “student complaint” she received.
copy of Defendant Martin’s August 2, 2007 emailMs. Sheldon is attached as Exhibit 2 to t
Complaint.

37. Ms. Sheldon requested a summary of the allegedestucbmplaint from Defendar
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Martin. Defendant Martin advised that the complawas “from a student. Because of the nature of

the complaint | would rather discuss it with youierson rather than by e-mail.Se€ Compl. Ex. 2.)

38. Defendant Martin did not advise whether the allegedhplaint was made pursuant

the District's non-discrimination policy or a “conumity complaint” procedure outlined in the

District’s Collective Bargaining Agreement.
D. THE DISTRICT 'SPOLICIES
39. The District is organized under Cal. Educ. Cod&¢@800—-70903.

40. The District serves approximately 20,000 studeatheemester.

41. The District is governed by the Board of Trusteespant to Cal. Educ. Code 8 7090p.

42.  The Board of Trustees issues Board Policies thatmgothe District, including SJCC.
43. Board Policy 1300, the District Vision Statementntains the following statemen

“Competent, well-rounded, resourceful, and inte¢lladly versatile students are the single m
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important indicators that we truly are meeting guals of our collective vision.” A copy of Boal
Policy 1300 is attached as Exhibit 3 to this Conmpla

44.  Board Policy 1300 also contains the following staat: “In pursuit of this vision, th¢
San Jose/Evergreen Community College District will.. . Recruit, employ, value, and suppor
dedicated and highly qualified and diverse faculty.” (See Compl. Ex. 3 § 12.)

45.  The Board of Trustees delegates some governingriytho the Chancellor, Defendat
Pérez, pursuant to Cal. Educ. Code § 70902(d).

46. Board Policy 2430, “Delegation of Authority to Clzatlor,” contains the following

statement:

The Board delegates to the Chancellor the execuisigonsibility for administering the
policies adopted by the Board and executing allisimes of the Board requiring
administrative action.

The Chancellor may delegate any powers and duhésisted to him or her by the
Board including the administration of the collegkest will be specifically responsible
to the Board for the execution of such delegatetlgne and duties.

The Chancellor is empowered to reasonably intefpoatrd policy. In situations where
there is no Board policy direction, the Chancediball have the power to act, but such
decisions shall be subject to review by the Board.

The Chancellor shall ensure that all relevant land regulations are complied with,
and that required reports are submitted in timaghion.

The Chancellor shall act as the professional advsthe Board in policy formation.

A copy of Board Policy 2430 is attached as Exhio this Complaint.

47. The Board of Trustees is also responsible under Edlc. Code 70902(b)(4) t
“employ and assign all personnel not inconsistdttt the minimum standards adopted by the boar
governors, and establish employment practicestieajaand benefits for all employees not inconsis
with the laws of this state.”

48. The Board of Trustees is required under Cal. Adr@iode tit. 5, 8 51023 to “adopt
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policy statement on academic freedom which shalinbele available to faculty,” and “substantia
comply with district adopted policy and proceduaéspted. . . .”

49.  Proposed Board Policy 4030, “Academic Freedom,ta@ios the following statement:

Institutions of higher learning exist for the conmmgood and not to further the interest
of either the individual instructor or the instibit as a whole. The common good
depends on the free search for truth and its frgession; to this end, faculty and
students hold the right of full freedom of inquagd expression.

Academic freedom is essential to these purposesappties to both teaching and
research. Freedom is fundamental to the proteatfothe rights of the teacher in
teaching and of the student in learning.

Academic freedom cannot be separated from acadamliprofessional responsibility.
Instructors

The instructor has the right to study and investiganterpret his/her findings and
express resulting conclusions to students. Theucter has the responsibility to be
thorough in his/her investigations and to draw dasions supported by the findings.
Because human knowledge is limited and changeti#@enstructor may present views
which are controversial and evaluate opinions Hgtdothers while simultaneously
respecting and valuing their right of their freg@esssion.

The Board of Trustees approved Proposed BoardyP4080 in March 2008. A copy of Propos
Board Policy 4030 is attached as Exhibit 5 to @dsnplaint.

50. Proposed Board Policy 4030 replaces Board Policg06M1, “Standards of Right

Freedoms and Responsibilities,” which containeddlewing statement:

Instructors

The instructor has the right to study and investiganterpret his/her findings and
express resulting conclusions to students. Thiuct®r has the responsibility to be
thorough in his/her investigations and to draw dasions supported by the findings.
Because human knowledge is limited and changeti#denstructor may present views
which are controversial and evaluate opinions Hsldothers while simultaneously
respecting the right of their free expression.

The same academic freedom rights for faculty anetasoed in Proposed Board Policy 4030 &

former Board Policy 6080.401.
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E. THE DISTRICT'SCOLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
51. The District is party to a Collective Bargaining rkgment (CBA) with Faculty
Association AFT 6157. A copy of the July 1, 2008ough June 30, 2009 Collective Bargaini
Agreement is attached as Exhibit 6 to this Complain
52. All faculty employed by the District, whether teedr faculty, tenure track faculty
adjunct instructional faculty, or adjunct non-ingfiional faculty, are included in the Facu

Association and are parties to the CBAegCompl. Ex. 6 § 1.1.1.)

53. Article 4 of the CBA, “Additional Faculty Member &hts,” contains a section gn

Academic Freedom that contains the following statetm

4.6.1 |Institutions of higher learning exist for tbemmon good and not to further the
interest of either the individual instructor or tirestitution as a whole. The
common good depends on the uninhibited search rigth tand its open
expression, and to this end both faculty and stisderust hold the right of full
freedom of inquiry and expression.

4.6.2 Academic freedom is equally essential to bedthing and research. Freedom
in research is fundamental to the advancementutt.tr Academic freedom is
fundamental to the protection of the rights of itigructor in teaching and to the
student in learning.

4.6.3 Academic freedom cannot be separated frondeasa and professional
responsibility.

4.6.4 Instructors have the right to study and itigate, to interpret their findings, and
express conclusions. Instructors may present vieatsare controversial and may
evaluate opinions held by others, while respedtiegight of free expression.

Academic freedom does not include use of discritonya discourteous,
offensive, abusive conduct or language toward stisdesupervisors, other
employees, or the public while in performance ddtbet employment.

(See Compl. Ex. 6 § 4.6.)
54. The CBA does not define “discriminatory,” “discoemus,” “offensive,” or “abusive
conduct or language.” None of Ms. Sheldon’s stat@s) in class on June 21, 2007 wg
discriminatory, discourteous, offensive, or abusive
55.  Article 9 of the CBA, “Adjunct Faculty and Substi#s,” contains a section on Senior

Rehire Rights that contains the following stateméWtdjunct faculty assigned a 33% or more loadt(
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to exceed 60% pursuant to Education Code Sectid8283) may be granted Seniority Rehire Preferg
(SRP). SRP status provides a qualified adjunailfigenember with seniority rehire preference rig
over other less senior adjunct faculty within thaesibn.” (See Compl. Ex. 6 § 9.12.1.)

56. Ms. Sheldon was listed on the District’'s SenioRghire Preference list.

57. Article 23 of the CBA, “Community Complaints/Distiipe/Rare and Compelling
Circumstances,” outlines the procedures followecenvla student, parent, or community mem
wants to lodge a complaint against a District fgcolember. $ee Compl. Ex. 6 § 23.1.)

58. A complaint about a faculty member is presentedh® “faculty member by thg
administrator receiving the complaint as soon a&siade but no later than ten (10) district instiaal
days.” Gee Compl. Ex. 6 § 23.1.)

59. The CBA contains the following statements:

The immediate administrator and the faculty membbkall meet to review the
complaint. At the request of the faculty member-aculty Association officer or

member may accompany the faculty member to the ingeet The immediate

administrator shall also meet with the complainentclarify the issue. If deemed
necessary by the administrator, a meeting shalsdieduled with both the faculty
member and the complainant in an effort to restileecomplaint. The faculty member
shall attend any such meetings called by the adtnator.

If the matter is not resolved at the meeting to ghesfaction of the complainant, the
complaint shall be put in writing to the faculty mieer, with a copy to the faculty
member’s immediate administrator.

If the faculty member believes the complaint isséaland/or based on hearsay, an
inquiry may be initiated to determine the validifysuch complaint. . . .

(See Compl. Ex. 6 88 23.1.1-3.)

60. The District disciplines faculty pursuant to anaimhal progressive discipline schedu
beginning with verbal reprimand and ending withtten reprimand.

61. The District also enforces a Harassment and Unlialificrimination policy that allowg
persons subject to harassment or discriminaticiidceither an informal or a formal complaint wit
the District. A copy of the District’s Interim Admistrative Procedures: Investigation and Resoluf
of Complaints Regarding Harassment and Unlawfutinsination policy is attached as Exhibit 7

this Complaint.
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62. Ms. Sheldon was not charged with either a CBA 8 28ommunity complaint” or g
Harassment and Unlawful Discrimination policy compt. Ms. Sheldon never received a verba
written reprimand pursuant to the progressive dlse schedule.

F. THE DISTRICT 'Sl NVESTIGATION .”

63. On or about September 6, 2007, Ms. Sheldon met Bgfendant Martin, Lois Lung
(Dean of the Division of Language Arts at SJCC)tddaa Hanfling (Executive Director, AFT 6157
and Deborah DelLaRosa (Grievance Officer, AFT 616 @iscuss the alleged student “complaint.”

64. The attendance of Ms. Lund and Ms. DelLaRosa atiting violated CBA 8§ 23.1.1.

65. Defendant Martin presented Ms. Sheldon with a copyan unsigned and undatg
“‘complaint.” Defendant Martin wrote the date J@y, 2007, on the “complaint.” A copy of th
unsigned “complaint” handed to Ms. Sheldon is digacas Exhibit 8 to this Complaint.

66.  On information and belief, the unnamed complaireas Caitlin Ferrell.

67. The “complaint” alleged that on June 21st during tHuman Heredity class, M

Sheldon discussed the chapter 3 contents and “tegtk about something that had no mentiorn i

the textbook.” The complainant stated that sheritbmany parts of her lecture highly offensive &
unscientific,” specifically referring to Ms. Shelds answers to the student’s question ab
homosexual behavior and heredity research. Thenptaint” ends with the following statemer

“Even after a month of waiting to cool down, | atil &iorribly offended.” Gee Compl. Ex. 8.)

68. Defendant Martin never indicated in writing whapyof “complaint” had been filed.

However, she verbally indicated at the beginninghef September 6th meeting that a student
willing to file a sexual orientation discriminati@omplaint. No such complaint was filed.

69. The June 21st lecture involved Medelian inheritanoet development as th
“complaint” stated.

70. Human heredity as related to homosexual behavialissussed in Chapter 6 of tk
Human Heredity course textbook.

71. The alleged student who made the alleged “compldimtpped Ms. Sheldon’s class
9:06 a.m. on June 21, 2007. The Human Heredigsataet that day from 9:00 a.m. to 11:05 a.m.
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alleged student dropped Ms. Sheldon’s class usifgcalty Requested Drop, but Ms. Sheldon did

fill out or file any papers to drop a student frber class on June 21, 2007.

72.  Ms. Sheldon left the September 6th meeting witheddant Martin with the impression

that the alleged “complaint” would be resolved immanner consistent with the District’'s inform

not

al

resolution procedures outlined in the CBA Commurltgmplaint procedures or Harassment and

Unlawful Discrimination policy.

73.  Although Ms. Sheldon requested to meet with thelestti complainant to resolve th
student’s alleged concerns, she was not askedtigipate in an informal resolution meeting witret
alleged student complainant.

74. On or about September 10, 2007, Ms. de la Rosaaseemail to Defendant Martir]
Ms. Hanfling, Ms. Sheldon, and herself discussimg $eptember 6th meeting. Ms. DeLaRosa w
that during the meeting the group discussed tlegedl student “complaint,” academic freedom rigl
and prevailing mainstream scientific thought. Staed that Ms. Sheldon would meet w
appropriate full time biology instructors and dissuhe following questions: “How are controvers
issues, such as race, gender and sexual prefer@hdtbey relate to course curriculum presenteq
taught in the classroom? What criteria is [sicgdiso present these issues in a fair and objeq
manner?” Ms. DelLaRosa also wrote that “it is im@ot that this initial meeting and a follow-{
meeting take place over the next month so this ¢ammtpand process does not drag on.” N
DelLaRosa also noted that Defendant Martin will echthe student complainant and let her know

a meeting with Ms. Sheldon took place and thatrarestigation was under way. A copy of M

e

rote
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S.

DelLaRosa’s September 10, 2007 email to DefendamtitViand others is attached as Exhibit 9 to this

Complaint.

75.  Atthe September 6th meeting, Ms. Sheldon saidvshedd be willing to discuss with hg
colleagues the topic of mainstream scientific thugnd only after Thanksgiving, because she wa
time to gather Dr. Dorner’s research and otherarebeso that she could present it to the faculty.

76. Ms. Sheldon has always presented scientific issmelstopics in a fair and objectiy

manner in class.
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77. Out of a desire to show her commitment to her sitsgdand the District’s policies, 0
October 19, 2007, Ms. Sheldon attended a clasHeghtiTeaching to A Culturally Diverse Stude
Population” at De Anza College in the Foothill-Daza Community College District.

78. Ms. Hanfling notified Defendant Martin that Ms. $then attended the diversit

]

nt

y

workshop at De Anza College. Ms. Hanfling wrotattMs. Sheldon “took this class because she {ook

seriously the concerns that were raised at thet¢Gdper 6] meeting and hopes and anticipates

perhaps the issues that were raised at the mesgiirig be better taken care of through her takingemo

that

classes on diversity which could be mutually agregon.” Ms. Hanfling also stated that Ms. Sheldon

respectfully requested not to meet with the otloggree faculty members because she was concgrned

about the fairness and objectivity of the proposeeting. A copy of Barbara Hanfling’'s October 22,

2007, email to Defendant Martin is attached as kA0 to this Complaint.

79. Defendant Martin never acknowledged receipt of Hiagf email or Ms. Sheldon’s

desire to alleviate the alleged student complalsancerns.
80. On October 19, 2007, Defendant Martin sent Ms. &helan email offering her

teaching assignment for the spring 2008 semegdtiee. email did not mention the student “complai

and employment was not contingent on some sortisgipglinary condition. A copy of Defendant

Martin’s October 19, 2007 email to Ms. Sheldontta@hed as Exhibit 11 to this Complaint.
81. On October 22, 2007, Ms. Sheldon emailed Defenifamtin and accepted the teachi
assignment for the spring 2008 semester. A copwisf Sheldon’s October 22, 2007 email

Defendant Martin is attached as Exhibit 12 to @asnplaint.

82. In reliance on the teaching assignment, Ms. Sheldade financial and professiongl

[

nt”

—+

(0]

plans for the spring 2008 semester. She determihad she would not need to seek alternate

employment because SJCC promised to employ her.
83. On December 6, 2007, Defendant Martin issued aerlethat concluded he

“‘investigation” into the alleged student “complainDefendant Martin wrote that during her Septem

-

6, 2007 meeting with Ms. Sheldon, “June [Sheldaithidted stating in her Human Heredity course that

mistreatment to pregnant women at a certain poittié pregnancy can cause male homosexuality.
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also stated that there was no such thing as traaléehomosexuality. She stated that the belielvatd
her opinions were consistent with mainstream sietihought by the biology community.” A copy d
Defendant Martin’s December 6, 2007 letter is &ktaicas Exhibit 13 to this Complaint.

84. Ms. Sheldon actually stated to her class that streposed on pregnant women col
cause male homosexual behavior, according to a &estientist’'s (Dr. Dorner) research, but that
topic was complex. Defendant Martin took the feenhbmosexuality issue out of context. M
Sheldon was unaware of any research by Dr. Doméhe topic of female homosexual behavior.

85. The letter also noted that Defendant Martin metviddally with the four full-time
biology faculty members at SJICC.

86. Defendant Martin wrote that she

asked each faculty member two questions. Thedusstion was about their perception

of the mainstream scientific thought on the natueeses [sic] nurture question of

homosexuality. The second question was on theicgpéion about the scientific
validity of the statement that there were no treimdle homosexuals. All four faculty
members expressed the same perception that theenagtsus nurture question was
very complex and current scientific thought indezhthat a combination of genetic and
environmental factors were involved in homosexyaliThree of the faculty members
strongly felt that the scientific community was agreement that there were female
homosexuals. The fourth faculty member stated shathad done no reading and had
no information on that particular scientific topic.

(See Compl. Ex. 13.)

87. Defendant Martin also wrote that the textbook usells. Sheldon’s Human Heredit
course “clearly stated that the causes for homadixuvere a subject of debate in the scient
community.” See Compl. Ex. 13.)

88. Ms. Sheldon never disputed the answers given byfdbe full-time biology faculty
members at SJCC. Her statements in class on dyr#@7 were similar to the views of the four fu
time biology faculty members.

89. Nevertheless, Defendant Martin wrote that “basedgnnvestigation | conclude that Ju
Sheldon was teaching misinformation as science sgience course. | feel that these statements
grievous enough to warrant withdrawing her SRRustand Spring 08 assignmentSe¢ Compl. Ex. 13.)

90. Defendant Martin made her determination and senlettier while acting under color g
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state law.

91. Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the student’s question aheredity and homosexual behavior

was the motivating factor for Defendant Martin di#eg to remove Ms. Sheldon’s seniority reh

re

preference and Spring 2008 teaching assignmentenDant Martin would not have made the same

decision absent Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the stigdguéstion on June 21, 2007.

92. Ms. Sheldon never received a verbal reprimand tewritvarning, or written repriman

d

pursuant to the community complaint proceduresred|in the CBA or the District’'s Harassment and

Unlawful Discrimination policy.

93. On December 18, 2007, Ms. Hanfling sent Defendaattil an email requesting
response regarding the “complaint” against Ms. &l Ms. Hanfling discussed Ms. Sheldof
spring 2008 teaching assignment and the divertayscshe took at De Anza College. She also wi
“More than 90 days have passed since our initisdtmg and there has been no movement from
student toward anything formal. We need to find what the status of the complaint is at this ti
and why.” A copy of Barbara Hanfling’s December 2807 email to Defendant Martin is attached
Exhibit 14 to this Complaint.

94. On December 19, 2007, Defendant Martin respondédistaHanfling’s email by stating
“[t]his matter is now being handled by the HR depent. A letter was mailed via Federal Expres;
June Sheldon yesterday.” A copy of Defendant MatiDecember 19, 2007 email to Barba
Hanfling is attached as Exhibit 15 to this Comptain

G. THE DISTRICT’SUNCONSTITUTIONAL TERMINATION OF MS. SHELDON.

95. On December 18, 2007, Defendant Anita Morris, thstrigt's Vice Chancellor of
Human Resources, sent a letter to Ms. Sheldon coingea “Student Complaint.” A copy d
Defendant Morris’ December 18, 2007 letter to Méelfon is attached as Exhibit 16 to tf
Complaint.

96. The letter states: “[D]uring the Fall 2007 semestee received a student complai
regarding statements you made in your Human Heredgarding homosexuality. An investigatig

has sustained the complaint.3%eé Compl. Ex. 16.)

VERIFIED COMPLAINT
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97. The letter also states that “the District is eatltito remove you from the adjun
seniority rehire preference list (‘'SRP’) on theibasf a student complaint. Please be advisedtkieg]
District has exercised its rights, and you are nemvoved from the SRP."S¢e Compl. Ex. 16.)

98. The District may only remove adjunct seniority rehpreference on the basis of]
faculty member needing to improve performance afopmance problems substantiated by multi
student complaints or surveysSe¢ CBA § 9.12.5.)

99. One informal student complaint is an insufficieasis for removing an adjunct facul
member from the seniority rehire preference list.

100. Finally, the letter stated that “the District ham &dependent right pursuant
Education Code section 87665 to terminate adjumgii@yees without cause at the end of any da

week. Thus, | am also advising you that pursuar@ection 87665 you are hereby terminated, sulg

to final approval of the Board of Trustees. Thiattar will go before the Board at its next regujall

scheduled meeting on January 8, 200&2eCompl. Ex. 16.)

101. Defendant Morris’ letter and determination was matide acting under color of state law.

t

ble

[y

o
y or

ject

102. Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the student’s question ahexedity and homosexual behavior

was the motivating factor for Defendant Morris dieg to terminate Ms. Sheldon’s employme

nt.

Defendant Morris would not have made the same meciabsent Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the

student’s question on June 21, 2007.

103. The Board of Trustees’ review of Ms. Sheldon’s emgpient was subsequent
removed from the January 8, 2008 Board of Trustagshda.

104. On or about January 8, 2008, Anu Kotha, a studentMs. Sheldon’s fall 2007
Microbiology class, delivered a letter to Defendilatrtin. The letter contained a handwritten noterf
Kotha stating that some students from the fall 20Gtobiology class noticed that Ms. Sheldon was
listed as teaching in spring 2008 and wanted Defeintartin to know about their concern. Enclog
with the handwritten letter is a letter from thett@ents of Micro Lab” stating that Sheldon was
“excellent teacher,” an “excellent lab teacher vathds of knowledge,” who was “very very patienée\

with some dumb questions we asked,” and that thssclvanted to “strongly recommend her ag
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excellent Micro lab instructor.” The letter is segl by sixteen (16) students from the class. A/a@ip
Anu Kotha’'s January 8, 2008 letter to DefendanttMas attached as Exhibit 17 to this Complaint.

105. On February 1, 2008, Defendant Morris sent Ms. @&ireh letter regarding her right
request an open session of the Board of Trusteesingeon February 12, 2008 when the Board \
scheduled to vote on whether Ms. Sheldon wouldeleased from her teaching position. This le
was subsequently placed in Ms. Sheldon’s employrfilent A copy of Defendant Morris’ February
2008 letter to Ms. Sheldon is attached as Exhiitolthis Complaint.

106. On February 6, 2008, the Foundation for IndividRaihts in Education (FIRE) sent
letter to Defendant Tanaka, the other membersenDiistrict Board of Trustees, Defendant Pérez,
Ms. Morris, advising them that if the District tamated Ms. Sheldon it would violate her rights
academic freedom and due process. Defendant Tarakdhe other recipients of the letter ne
responded to FIRE. A copy of FIRE’'s February 60&20etter to Defendant Tanaka is attached
Exhibit 19 to this Complaint.

107. On February 7, 2008, Defendant Morris sent a sedefter to Ms. Sheldon regardin
her right to request that her termination hearieghleld in open session of the District's Board
Trustees meeting on February 12, 2008.

108. Ms. Morris also wrote: “Chancellor Pérez, intertdsrecommend to the Board
Trustees that you be released from your tempoeaghing position, effective immediately.” A coply
Defendant Morris’ February 7, 2008 letter to Mselslbon is attached as Exhibit 20 to this Complaint.

109. On February 12, 2008, at a regularly scheduledribisBoard of Trustees meeting

Defendant Michael L. Burke recommended that ther8oaf Trustees terminate Ms. Sheld

o

vas

ter

a

and

—

0]
ver

as

g

of

Df

)

DN

immediately based on the alleged complaint andnsteexperienced by one unnamed student.

Defendants Balbir Dhillon, Maria Fuentes, Autumnti&uez, Richard Hobbs, Richard K. Tanal
Rosa Pérez, Michael L. Burke, and Leandra Martirevie attendance at the meeting.

110. Defendant Burke’s decision and recommendation wademvhile acting under color ¢
state law.

111. Counsel for Ms. Sheldon addressed the Board oftdessand informed them th
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terminating Ms. Sheldon based on an alleged stuttemhplaint” and what she said during cla
violated her First Amendment rights to free speacil academic freedom. Ms. Sheldon §
submitted written materials in her defense.

112. During the Board of Trustees meeting, Defendant#ldh Fuentes, Gutierrez, Hobb
and Tanaka reviewed evidence submitted by Ms. 8held her defense and then voted unanimol
during closed session to terminate Ms. Sheldoncopy of the minutes from the Board of Truste
February 12, 2008 meeting is attached as Exhibib2kis Complaint.

113. Defendants Dhillon, Fuentes, Gutierrez, Hobbs, | @#amura, and Tanaka are fin
decision makers for the District. Their decisian feebruary 12, 2008, was made while acting urj

color of state law.

Iso

"2}

Isly

11
m..

al

der

114. Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the student’s question ahexedity and homosexual behavior

was the motivating factor for Defendants DhilloryelRtes, Gutierrez, Hobbs, Lind, Okamura, 4
Tanaka’'s decision to terminate Ms. Sheldon’s emplengt. Defendants Dhillon, Fuentes, Gutierr|
Hobbs, Lind, Okamura, and Tanaka would not haveenthd same decision absent Ms. Sheldd
answer to the student’s question on June 21, 2007.

115. On February 14, 2008, Defendant Morris sent Msld®imea letter confirming that th
District’'s Board of Trustees voted at the Februb2y 2008 meeting to release Ms. Sheldon from
teaching position. The Board of Trustees actiak teffect February 13, 2008. A copy of Defend
Morris’ February 14, 2008 letter to Ms. Sheldomttached as Exhibit 22 to this Complaint.

116. On February 14, 2008, Defendant Pérez sent Msd&hel letter confirming that durin
the February 12, 2008 Board of Trustees meetiegBthard of Trustees “did accept your written matsyi
they were distributed to each member; and the menfizel the opportunity to review the material pto
making their final determination” regarding Ms. &lom’'s employment. A copy of Defendant Pére
February 14, 2008 letter to Ms. Sheldon is attaetsaxhibit 23 to this Complaint.

117. On information and belief, other adjunct lecturargl faculty in the District have ng
been investigated and terminated for answeringdesit’s question about class material.

118. On March 20, 2008, Ms. Sheldon timely filed a Lelgrievance pursuant to CBA
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3.2.5. A copy of Ms. Sheldon’s Level | grievansattached as Exhibit 24 to this Complaint.

119. Article 3 of the CBA, “Complaint/Grievance Procedyiroutlines the process and righ
faculty members have in filing a complaint or gaege against a decision of the District or
employees. $ee Compl. Ex. 6 § 3.)

120. The Complaint/Grievance Procedure contains theviollg statement: “A grievance

its

S

a written complaint by a faculty member (or othevpger party as defined in Section 3.3) regarding a

violation or misapplication by the District, itsfiolers, or agents of this contract. Resolutiomattters
for which other procedures are specifically prodidey Federal or State law shall be underta
through the appropriate proceduresSegCompl. Ex. 6 8§ 3.1.4.)

121. When a faculty member wishes to initiate a grieeariee or she files a notice of tl
grievance “with the Vice Chancellor of Human Resesrwith copies [sent] to the President of
Faculty Association and the college Presideng&e Compl. Ex. 6 § 3.2.5.) This begins Level | of t
grievance process.

122. Upon receipt of a Level | grievance, the “immediatiministrator shall communicat

his/her decision to the faculty member in writingithin ten (10) days after receiving grievang

stating the administrator’s reasons for the denisigSee Compl. Ex. 6 8§ 3.6.2.)
123. On April 4, 2008, Ms. Sheldon received an ematkletrom Defendant Martin denyin

Ken

e

the

e

€,

0

her grievance. A copy of Defendant Martin’s emailMs. Sheldon is attached as Exhibit 25 to this

Complaint.
124. After determination of a Level | grievance, theultg member can appeal a Leve
grievance to Level Il.

125. The CBA’s Complaint/Grievance Procedure contairsftilowing statement on Levg

Il grievances:

3.7.1 The grievant may appeal a Level | decisiobewel Il by writing to the office of
the Chancellor or designee within fifteen (15) dafter receiving the Level |
decision. A copy of the appeal, written in the sdarenat as outlined in Section
3.2, shall be furnished to the Level | administratod the college President.

3.7.2 The Chancellor or designee shall investigage details of the grievance and
meet with the grievant and/or a Faculty Associatepresentative within fifteen

VERIFIED COMPLAINT
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(15) days of receipt of the grievance appeal ireotd resolve the issue.

3.7.3 The Chancellor or designee shall communiiceteiting his/her decision to the
grievant, the Faculty Association, and the affedddinistrator within fifteen
(15) days after the grievance meeting(s).
(See Compl. Ex. 6 § 3.7.)

126. After determination of a Level Il grievance by tbBestrict Chancellor, a grievant ma
file a Level Ill grievance only if represented bgdalty Association AFT 6157.

127. Pursuant to CBA 8§ 3.7.1, Ms. Sheldon had fiftees) days to file a Level Il grievanc
appealing Defendant Martin’s decision. Days ariindd as any day that the District office is op
(See Compl. Ex. 6 8 3.5.1.) Fifteen (15) calendar dafysr April 4, 2008, is April 19, 2008.

128. Ms. Sheldon appealed the Level | denial by filingnaely Level Il grievance on Apri
17, 2008. She delivered the grievance to the GHiams Office on April 17, 2008. A copy of th
date-stamped Level Il grievance Ms. Sheldon fikedttached as Exhibit 26 to this Complaint.

129. On June 6, 2008, Ms. Sheldon received a lettezddatine 2, 2008, from Defendd
Morris responding on behalf of Defendant Pérezrastdying Ms. Sheldon that her Level Il grievan
was denied. Defendant Morris wrote that Ms. Sh@kldevel Il grievance was denied because
did not file it within fifteen (15) days of DefendiaMartin’s response. A copy of Defendant Morr|
June 2, 2008 letter to Ms. Sheldon is attachedkashi 27 to this Complaint.

y
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130. Defendants Pérez and Morris failed to address Meld®n’s timely filed Level I
grievance.

131. Defendants Pérez and Morris took these actionsvatiting under color of state law.

132. Ms. Sheldon’s answer to the student’s question ahexedity and homosexual behavior

was the motivating factor for Defendants Pérez'd Bforris’ decision to terminate Ms. Sheldon
employment. Defendants Pérez and Morris would heote made the same decision absent
Sheldon’s answer to the student’s question on 2an2007.

H. THE INJURIES SUSTAINED BY M S. SHELDON

133. Each of the adverse actions outlined above, froenithproper investigation of Mg.

Sheldon’s protected speech activities to termimatd Ms. Sheldon’s employment based on (
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alleged student complaint were based in whole @an upon her in-class statements regarding hu

heredity that lasted about five to ten (5—10) nmasutin June 21, 2007.

134. Defendants’ actions eliminated Ms. Sheldon’s souofeincome, damaged her

reputation, caused her physical and emotionaliggyuiand irreparably injured her constitutionahtgy

to free speech, academic freedom, due processvpalad equal protection of law.

135. It is extremely distressing to Ms. Sheldon that hame is linked on campus (and

probably elsewhere) with allegations of “offensivadnduct, unprofessional behavior, and teach

“non-science.” No amount of diligence and discgviey Ms. Sheldon, in the context of litigation

man

ing

otherwise, could ever determine the extent to whiehname is now linked with those allegationg in

the minds of people, known and unknown to her.
136. Ms. Sheldon has also been irreparably harmed inchesen profession as a colle
science teacher. Not only are accusations of difigna student and teaching non-science toxic yo

opportunity for employment, especially within thebtic sphere for which Ms. Sheldon received

training, but public accusations like those madé®bjendants poisons her opportunities in the fofld

ge
an

her

higher education science teaching. While Ms. Sheldas mitigated her damages by attempting to

attain other employment, she desires reinstatemetite District under circumstances in which her

constitutional rights and academic freedom willgoetected. In addition, she desires damages &fr

injuries sustained as a result of Defendants’ uhdbeonduct.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

First Amendment Retaliation
Violation of Freedom of Speech (42 U.S.C. § 1983)

137. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the forggailegations in this Complaint.

138. By subjecting Ms. Sheldon to a lengthy and intresiwestigation and terminating h

th

employment based on her protected expression inesimgy a student’s in-class question on a matter of

public concern, among other things, Defendantgyddigy and practice, have retaliated against Rf&int

because of her free expression and deprived hkerofbility to freely express her ideas on issue

public concern at SJCC.
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139. Defendants, acting under color of state law angdiicy and practice, knew or shou
have known that they explicitly and implicitly drsminated against Plaintiff for exercising her clga
established right to free speech on issues of publncern and right to academic freedom as sec|
by the First Amendment to the United States Cantgiit.

140. Because of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiff has saffe and continues to suffe
economic injury and irreparable harm. She, theegfs entitled to an award of monetary damag

including punitive damages, and equitable relief.

141. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 88 1983 and 1988, Plainsiffentitted to declaratory and

injunctive relief reinstating her employment anturaing her Seniority Rehire Preference list positi
Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to monetary dages in an amount to be determined by the evids

and the Court, including her reasonable attornf®es and costs.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of Plaintiff's First Amendment Rights
to Freedom of Speech & Academic Freedom (42 U.S.€.1983)

142. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the forggailegations in this Complaint.

143. By subjecting Ms. Sheldon to a lengthy and intresiwestigation and terminating h
employment based on her protected expression inesimg) a student’s in-class question on a mattg
public concern, among other things, Defendantqd#igy and practice, have discriminated on thed
of viewpoint and content and have deprived Pldiofiher ability to express her ideas freely omessof
public concern at SJCC.

144. Defendants, acting under color of state law angdiicy and practice, knew or shou
have known that they explicitly and implicitly drsminated against Plaintiff for exercising her clga
established right to free speech on issues of publncern and right to academic freedom as sec|
by the First Amendment to the United States Cantgiit.

145. Because of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiff has seffe and continues to suffe
economic injury and irreparable harm. She, theesfs entitled to an award of monetary damag
including punitive damages, and equitable relief.
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146. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 88 1983 and 1988, Plainsiffentitted to declaratory and

injunctive relief reinstating her employment anturaing her Seniority Rehire Preference list positi
Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to monetary dages in an amount to be determined by the evids

and the Court, including her reasonable attornf®es and costs.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of Plaintiff's Fourteenth Amendment Right
to Equal Protection of Law (42 U.S.C. 8 1983

147. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the forggailegations in this Complaint.
148. By subjecting Ms. Sheldon to a lengthy and intrasiwestigation and terminating h

employment based on her answer to a student'sagsctiuestion on a matter of public concq

Defendants, by policy and practice, have treateshiff differently from similarly situated teachser

and professors at the District and deprived PRiafiher ability to freely express her ideas osuiss
of public concern at SJCC.

149. Defendants, acting under color of state law, angddicy and practice, knew or shou
have known that they explicitly and implicitly disminated against Plaintiff on the basis of viewyo|
and deprived her of her clearly established righegual protection of law as secured by the Fontte
Amendment to the United States Constitution.

150. Because of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiff has seffe and continues to suffe
economic injury and irreparable harm. She, theegfs entitled to an award of monetary damag

including punitive damages, and equitable relief.

151. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 88 1983 and 1988, Plainsiffentitied to declaratory and

injunctive relief reinstating her employment anturaing her Seniority Rehire Preference list positi
Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to monetary dages in an amount to be determined by the evids

and the Court, including her reasonable attornf®es and costs.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of Plaintiff's Fourteenth Amendment Right
to Due Process of Law (42 U.S.C. 8§ 1983)
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152. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the forggailegations in this Complaint.

153. By failing to explain the basis for terminating it#f, disabling Plaintiff from defending

herself and confronting the allegedly “offendedidsnt prior to termination, and failing to proper

entertain and respond to Plaintiff's Level Il g@ece under the Collective Bargaining Agreemg
Defendants, by policy and practice, have deniethiffadue process of law and terminated her with
following constitutionally and contractually manedtstandards and procedures.

154. Defendants, acting under color of state law, angddicy and practice, knew or shou
have known that they explicitly and implicitly dreminated against Plaintiff on the basis of viewyo)
and deprived her of her clearly established rightiwe process of law as secured by the Fourte
Amendment to the United States Constitution.

155. Because of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiff has seffe and continues to suffe
economic injury and irreparable harm. She, theegfs entitled to an award of monetary damag

including punitive damages, and equitable relief.

156. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 88 1983 and 1988, Plainsiffentitlted to declaratory and

injunctive relief reinstating her employment anturaing her Seniority Rehire Preference list positi
Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to monetary dages in an amount to be determined by the evids

and the Court, including her reasonable attornf®es and costs.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff June Sheldon respectfully resfg that the Court enter judgme
against Defendants Dhillon, Fuentes, Gutierrez,iddphind, Okamura, Tanaka, Pérez, Morris, Bui
and Martin, and provide her with the following edli

A. A declaratory judgment stating that Defendants Mar#orris, Burke, Pérez, Dhillon
Fuentes, Guiterrez, Hobbs, Lind, Okamura, and Tasakvestigation and termination (
Plaintiffs employment based on Plaintiff's protedtexpression violated her rights to fr
speech, academic freedom, due process and eqtetiora of law as guaranteed under |

First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United Sta@tmnstitution;
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A permanent injunction requiring the Defendantsdiostate Plaintiff as an adjunct lectuner

in the District at the same level of seniority tatgs she had before she was terminated;
A permanent injunction requiring the Defendantsrémstate Plaintiff to her previou
status, plus any lost status, on the Seniority ReRreference list maintained by t
Defendants;

An order requiring the Defendants to expunge frdeanf@ff's personnel file any negativ
evaluations, findings, determinations, evidence,documents relating to the District
investigation and termination;

Monetary compensatory damages from the Defendantair individual capacities t
compensate Plaintiff for her lost wages, damageregjutation, and physical and/
emotional injury and distress as a result of Defarsl violating Plaintiff's First
Amendment rights to freedom of speech and acadeimiedom and Fourteent

Amendment rights to due process and equal proteofitaw;

Monetary punitive damages from the Defendants &irtindividual capacities for their

actions in violating Plaintiff's First Amendmenghts to freedom of speech and acade
freedom and Fourteenth Amendment rights to duegz®and equal protection of law;
Nominal damages from Defendants in their individeabpacities for their actions i
violating Plaintiff's First Amendment rights to #dom of speech and academic freed
and Fourteenth Amendment rights to due proces®quadl protection of law;

Plaintiffs reasonable costs and expenses of tkisom including attorneys’ fees, |
accordance with 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and other appedalv;

All other further relief to which Plaintiff may bentitled; and

That this Court retain jurisdiction of this matfer the purpose of enforcing this Court

orders.
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DavipJ. CKER
California Bar No. 249272
Illinois Bar No. 6283022

ADF CENTER FOR ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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FED. R. CIV. P. 7.1 CORPORATE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

This Corporate Disclosure Statement is filed on behalf of June Sheldon in comphance with
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 7.1. | ’

June Sheldon is an individual; she has no parent corporation and has not issued, nor will issue,
publicly held stock. Thus, no other corporation holds any stock in June Sheldon.

A supplemental disclosure statement will be filed upon any change in the information provided

herein.

Respectfully submitted this 15th day of July, 2008,

DAVID J. HACKER

California Bar Ne. 249272

Illinois Bar No. 6283022

ADF CENTER FOR ACADEMIC FREEDOM
Attorneys for Plaintiff

VERIFIED COMPLAINT
28




[\]

~1 SN R W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT
I, June Sheldon, a citizen of the United States and resident of the State of California, hereby
declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746 that I have read the foregoing Verified
Complaint and the factual allegations therein, and the facts as alleged are true and correct.

Y- .
Executed this /7 day ofmfgg&l , 2008, at Soquel, California.

Jiie Sheldon
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